
1 
Historic Preservation Commission Minutes – July 11, 2018 

 

FRANKLIN COUNTY HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

July 11, 2018 

The Franklin County Historic Preservation Commission held its regular monthly meeting on Wednesday, 
July 11, 2018 in the Franklin County Government Offices, 215 E. Nash St, Louisburg, North Carolina. 
 
Present: Maury York, Bill Harris, Joanne Carpenter, Penny McGhee  
Staff:  Scott Hammerbacher, and Katie Rhyne  
 
Chairman Maury York called the meeting to order at 9:00AM and welcomed everyone in attendance. 
 
Corrections to the minutes were sent to staff prior to the Historic Preservation Commission meeting. 
The changes to the minutes were discussed between members of the Historic Preservation Commission. 
Bill Harris made a motion to approve the June minutes with corrections. Joanne Carpenter seconded the 
motion. The motion passed by a vote of 4-0. 
 

1. Claudia Brown from the North Carolina State Historic Preservation Office gave a presentation 
regarding publishing strategies for Architectural Surveys. 

 
Claudia Brown stated that the steps to taking a historical survey and publishing it as a book were to start 
by having a consultant produce a manuscript, then hiring a production company to design a book. 
 
Staff asked what the expected timeframe for finalizing a copy of the book could be. 
 
Claudia Brown stated that it depended upon the project. She stated that she had seen it take as little as 
a year to produce a manuscript before the project was forwarded to a production company. 
 
Staff asked what role the Historic Preservation Commission played. 
 
Claudia Brown stated that the Historic Preservation Commission often formed a committee focused on 
working with the production company/consultant in selecting which properties could serve the book the 
best. She stated that the Historic Preservation Commission could seek funding from numerous sources. 
Claudia Brown explained that the Town of Louisburg was attempting to hire a consultant to update their 
book on the Louisburg Historic District.  
 
The Historical Preservation Commission asked what cost could be associated with publishing an 
architectural survey. 
 
Claudia Brown explained that it depended on the project. She explained that the size of the book, the 
amount of colored pages, etc. all had an impact on determining the cost of publishing. She explained 
that generally it would be between $15,000 and $20,000 to hire a consultant to create the manuscript. 
 
Claudia Brown stated that when Franklin County became a Certified Local Government it would have 
access to matching grants that could be used to cover half the price of the manuscript. She explained 
that many municipalities had received sponsors to help cover the cost of book and manuscript 



2 
Historic Preservation Commission Minutes – July 11, 2018 

production. Applications for the grant would be due at the end of February 2019. The Federation of 
North Carolina Historical Societies had an interest-free loan available that was frequently utilized by 
municipalities before publication. The loan is for $15,000 and must be repaid within a year. 
 
Staff stated that since this was for professional services, the Historic Preservation Commission could 
choose who they wanted as consultants. 
 
The Historic Preservation Commission commended the examples of books they saw by Daniel Pezzoni 
and acknowledged that he had done very good work in the past, and were interested in seeking him out 
for consulting work. 
 
Claudia Brown stated that marketing was also an important factor to consider. 
 
Staff asked what the main purpose of publishing a book is. 
 
Claudia Brown stated that it served as a good educational tool for the history of the area, and could lead 
to more interest in preserving structures throughout the county. 
 
The Historic Preservation Commission discussed the possibility of including links within the footnotes of 
the publication to documented oral histories of the properties. The Historic Preservation Commission 
asked what strategies could be utilized for obtaining photographic rights for historic properties. 
 
Claudia Brown stated that the State Historic Preservation Office charged one dollar ($1.00) for the use of 
an image in their collection. She explained that they also had a member of staff who acted as a 
photographer for historic properties. As payment for the photographer’s services, the municipality 
would be responsible for his lodging, meals, and travel. All of the photographer’s work must be 
acknowledged in the book, and two (2) copies of the book must be provided to the State Historic 
Preservation Office. 
 
Claudia Brown stated that the average cost of purchasing a completed book was $40-$60. 
 
The Historic Preservation Commission suggested that Julie Allred from B&W books could attend an 
upcoming meeting. 
 

2. Staff presented updates on Certified Local Government status. 
 
Staff stated that changes requested by the State Historic Preservation Office had been made to the 
Riverside Union School designation report. 
 
A list of properties that, having recently been added to the State Historic Preservation Office’s Study List,  
may now be considered for the National Register of Historic Places, was passed to members of the 
Commission. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
Historic Preservation Commission Minutes – July 11, 2018 

With there being no further business before the Commission, the meeting was adjourned at 10:30 AM. 
 
 
___________________________________  ________________________________ 
Maury York, Chairman     Katie Rhyne, Clerk 
Franklin County - HPC     Franklin County -  HPC 


